
 

General Business                                       Lower Saucon Township                                         August 19, 2015 

& Developer                                                     Council Agenda                                                        7:00 p.m. 
 

 

I. OPENING 

 A. Call to Order 

 B. Roll Call 

 C. Pledge of Allegiance 

 D. Announcement of Executive Session (if applicable) 

 E. Public Comment Procedure 

   

II. PRESENTATIONS/HEARINGS  
A. Resolution #75-2015 – Recognizing Ernest P. Stavrovsky, Jr. for Receiving the Eagle Scout Award 

 

III DEVELOPER ITEMS 

 
IV. TOWNSHIP BUSINESS ITEMS 

A. Update from Hanover Engineering on LVIP Traffic Study for Easton Road 

B. Request for Old Mill Road/Arden Lane Neighborhood Watch Signs  

C. Update on FERC Process Regarding PennEast Pipeline 
D. Discussion on Department Heads Attendance at Council Meetings 

 

V. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS ITEMS 

A. Approval of August 5, 2015 Minutes 

B. Approval of July 2015 Financial Reports 

     

VI. PUBLIC COMMENT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
 

VII. COUNCIL & STAFF REPORTS   

 A. Township Manager 

 B. Council 

 C. Solicitor 

 D. Engineer 

 E. Planner  
 

VIII. ADJOURNMENT 

 

 
Next Saucon Rail Trail Oversight Commission Meeting:  August 24, 2015   

Next Zoning Hearing Board Meeting:  August 24, 2015 

Next Planning Commission Meeting:  August 27, 2015 

Next Council Meeting:  September 2, 2015 

Next EAC Meeting:  September 8, 2015 
Next Park & Rec Meeting:  September 14, 2015 

Next Saucon Valley Partnership:  September 9, 2015 @ HB 

 
 

 

www.lowersaucontownship.org 



 

General Business                                             Lower Saucon Township                                         August 19, 2015 

& Developer                                                          Council Minutes                                                          7:00 P.M. 
 

 
I. OPENING 

CALL TO ORDER:  The General Business & Developer meeting of Lower Saucon Township Council 

was called to order on Wednesday, August 19, 2015 at 7:00 P.M., at Lower Saucon Township, 3700 Old 

Philadelphia Pike, Bethlehem, PA with Mr. Ron Horiszny, presiding.     

ROLL CALL:  Ron Horiszny, President; Thomas Maxfield, Vice President; Dave Willard and Priscilla 

deLeon, Council members; Jack Cahalan, Township Manager; Leslie Huhn, Assistant Manager; Linc 

Treadwell, Township Solicitor; Jim Milot, Hanover Engineering.  Absent:  Glenn Kern, Council Member; 

Judy Stern Goldstein, Township Planner; Brien Kocher, Township Engineer. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

 ANNOUNCEMENT OF ANY EXECUTIVE SESSION (IF APPLICABLE) 

Mr. Horiszny said Council did meet in Executive Session prior to the meeting. 

Attorney Treadwell said we had three items of discussion.  The first was a potential acquisition of property 

under the Open Space Act and Council is not interested in acquiring this particular piece of property. 

MOTION BY: Mrs. deLeon moved that Council is not interested in acquiring parcel ID No. Q8-11-14B-0719. 

SECOND BY: Mr. Maxfield 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Mr. Kern – Absent) 

 

Attorney Treadwell said there’s a potential litigation item that has to do with a settlement agreement that 

has been proposed to the Township from the PA Fish and Boat Commission regarding an accidental spill in 

the Saucon Creek.  We need a motion to have the Council President sign and execute that agreement.  Part 

of that repair is a payment to the PA Fish and Boat Commission of $500.00. 

MOTION BY: Mr. Willard moved to authorize the Council President to sign and execute the PA Fish and 

Boat Commission settlement agreement for the accidental release of water from the Viola Lane 

sinkhole repair and authorize the payment of $500.00. 

SECOND BY: Mr. Maxfield 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Mr. Kern – Absent) 

 

Attorney Treadwell said the pending litigation filed by Mr. & Mrs. Louder against LST and the Police 

Chief, there is a mediation that’s going to take place at the end of September and if Council agrees, you 

would need to authorize his attendance at that mediation. 

MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved to send Attorney Treadwell to the Louder mediation on the date that was 

stated. 

SECOND BY: Mr. Horiszny 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Mr. Kern – Absent) 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT/CITIZEN AGENDA ITEMS 

 Mr. Horiszny said if you are on the agenda, you have Council and Staff’s undivided attention.  If you do 

choose to speak, we ask that you use one of the microphones.  He asks that you give your fellow public the 

courtesy of the floor.  We ask that you state your name for the record so the transcriptionist knows who is 

speaking in the minutes.  If you are up at the table, please speak into the microphone.   

 

II. PRESENTATIONS/HEARINGS 

A. RESOLUTION #75-2015 – RECOGNIZING ERNEST F. STAVROVSKY, JR. FOR 

RECEIVING THE EAGLE SCOUT AWARD 
Mrs. deLeon read the resolution.  She said she feels we need to keep our kids busy and it’s an 

honor for the community plus he’s setting an example for other kids his age.  She presented the 

resolution to Ernest Stavrovsky, Jr. 

 

III. DEVELOPER ITEMS – None  

 



General Business & Developer Meeting    

August 19, 2015 
 

Page 2 of 5 

IV. TOWNSHIP BUSINESS ITEMS 

A. UPDATE FROM HANOVER ENGINEERING ON LVIP VII TRAFFIC STUDY FOR 

EASTON ROAD 

Mr. Jim Milot, Hanover Engineering was present.  This project is the last of the parcels fronting 

along Easton Road.  The preliminary results of impact for Easton Road are nominal.  The largest 

impact will be Cherry Lane and Easton Road.  The projected increase in traffic waiting time would 

be an additional 3 seconds per vehicle.  Mr. Maxfield asked about the trees coming down?  Mr. 

Milot said that will be discussed by the city of Bethlehem and PennDOT.  Mr. Maxfield asked 

about re-planting a buffer?  Mr. Maxfield said he doesn’t buy the three second delay.  He’s 

interested in mitigating this for our residents as much as possible and LVIP really needs to take that 

into consideration.  Mrs. deLeon said we have an SVP meeting in September and this should be 

discussed to prepare a joint letter with them.  Mr. Maxfield asked how HEA can represent us and 

present the best we can get for the Township and represent LVIP at the same time.  Mr. Milot said 

because of their involvement on both sides, it facilitates communication and traffic doesn’t stop or 

recognize municipal boundaries.  Mr. Horiszny would like a letter written to submit to PennDOT 

and Bethlehem with our concerns.  Mr. Milot said the letter could be written from the Township 

staff or from Attorney Treadwell.  Mrs. deLeon said if Hellertown is showing up at these scoping 

meetings, the Township needs to be there also. 

 

Kathy McGovern, 4260 Lower Saucon Road, asked what kind of businesses were going in there?  

Ms. McGovern said there will be noise, lights, and tractor trailers.  Mrs. deLeon said we can voice 

our opinions on those issues. 

 

Gordon Gress, 2371 Black River Road, said regarding the Eastern Engineered Wood Products 

business, all of their materials come in by rail and there are 8 trucks go out at 5 a.m. every 

morning.  Lands End, shuffles from truck to truck and they have everything from iron, steel, pipe, 

grain, lumber that comes in and out of there.  Mrs. deLeon asked if the railroad tracks go through 

Steel City?  Mr. Gress said no.   

 

Sandra Yerger, 2734 Easton Road asked about the 3-second delay at the intersection between 

Cherry Lane and Easton Road, did Mr. Milot mean just accessing onto Easton Road or going the 

other way from Cherry Lane?  Mr. Milot said stopping at the intersection at the stop signs, it 

doesn’t matter which way.  Mrs. Yerger said if you go there at an early hour, cars are backed up on 

Cherry Lane trying to access on to Route 412.  She can’t imagine increasing the traffic on Easton 

Road.  It’s going to be a huge problem.  Mr. Milot said exhibits 9 and 10 that show the anticipated 

number of trips per each facility.  Mr. Maxfield asked if there were any traffic signals planned?  

Mr. Milot said not at this time.   

 

Mr. Horiszny said for the letter we should mention trees, traffic, noise, and lighting.  Mr. Milot will 

make sure the developer knows of all the concerns LST has.  Mrs. deLeon asked to put this back on 

the agenda September 16
th
 to authorize the letter.   

MOTION BY: Mrs. deLeon moved to have staff place the traffic issue on the September 16
th
 Council agenda 

to discuss what happened at the SVP meeting and to sit down and work on a letter to send. 

SECOND BY: Mr. Horiszny  

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Mr. Kern – Absent) 

 

B. REQUEST FOR OLD MILL ROAD/ARDEN LANE NEIGHBORHOOD WATCH SIGNS 

Mr. Cahalan said Officer Haggerty has been working with residents in the Old Mill Road and 

Arden Lane area to form a neighborhood watch group.  They made a request to have signs erected 

in those neighborhoods.  It would be the same sign that was previously approved for Mr. Willard’s 

area and for the Wildberry Lane area.  The cost of those signs is approximately $75.00 each and 

that cost will be borne by the residents.  Public Works will erect the signs and bill the cost to the 

requesting party.   



General Business & Developer Meeting    

August 19, 2015 
 

Page 3 of 5 

MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved to approve the Old Mill Road/Arden Lane area for neighborhood block 

watch signs. 

SECOND BY: Mrs. deLeon 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Mr. Kern – Absent) 

 

C. UPDATE ON FERC PROCESS REGARDING PENNEAST PIPELINE 

Mr. Cahalan read a memo prepared by Attorney Charles Elliott.  He is still reviewing the draft 

reports from July 31
st
 to evaluate the implications for LST.   Within LST, it appears the route has 

been shifted slightly northeast where it crosses I-78, Redington Road and Lower Saucon Road.  

The August 11, 2015 progress reports include minutes from the July 31
st
 meeting with the PA DEP 

in which PennEast says they also plan to submit PA and NJ state and federal permit applications 

with the formal FERC application in September.  Mrs. deLeon said we need to watch out for the 

access roads as they are going to take up a lot of land. 

 

Kathy McGovern asked if there is anything in the report on when FERC is going to make their 

final decision?  Mr. Cahalan said it just says PennEast is filing in mid-September.  Mr. Maxfield 

said they were originally supposed to have their routes solidified in July and FERC was supposed 

to make their decision in September.   

 

Mike Keifer, Lower Saucon Road, said the new adjustment completely destroys a one-acre lot for 

him.  He reported that PennEast has been flying helicopters over his property and damaging 

nursery stock and it’s not safe for employees as they are flying very low.  He denied access for 

them to survey the property, so he thinks they are doing it that way.  He can’t prove it’s PennEast.  

Mr. Cahalan said it may be the power line company monitoring their power lines using helicopters.  

Mr. Cahalan will ask PennEast if they are using helicopters to survey the route.   

 

D. DISCUSSION ON DEPARTMENT HEADS ATTENDANCE AT COUNCIL MEETINGS 

Mrs. deLeon said it would be very helpful to have department heads at Council meetings.  She 

knows they attend various meetings throughout the year.  She agrees with the statements in Jack’s 

memo which she read.  He said when he first started, department heads attended the meetings and 

she doesn’t remember them attending and would like him to provide those dates.  Mr. Cahalan said 

there were some at some of the meetings he attended.  Mrs. deLeon said she looked at the minutes 

and didn’t find any department heads at the meetings.  She agrees that when a resident has an issue, 

they need to go up the ladder before they come to Council.  That’s not her reason for having staff 

attend the meetings.  At the last meeting there was a budget transfer and Cathy said she never saw 

the Meyner letter for the Manager search proposal and put $12,000.00 in the budget for a proposal 

that was capped at $6,000.00.  She didn’t have the information she needed, especially if she was 

doing a budget transfer.  Last year after the fact, she found out the Township had already met with 

PennEast and that was never disclosed to Council.  When Mary Curtin was here, she used to give 

us a weekly report on everything that happened that week.  At least they had an idea of what was 

going on.  Last year she had to read in the paper about a personnel issue she didn’t even know 

about.  She only wants Council to be kept informed of day-to-day things.  On June 30
th
 there was a 

sinkhole on Viola Lane which Council didn’t know about.  That was significant and they should 

have known about that.  She feels we need to do something better.   

 

Mr. Horiszny said he disagrees with Mrs. deLeon, as micromanaging can get very tedious and is 

more harmful than helpful.  He thinks the way we are doing things now is working pretty well, the 

fact that Jack and staff answer things based on a knowledge and record they have at hand.  We 

might be better served that large work requests by Council members be approved by the Council so 

that the staff doesn’t get overburdened.     

 

Mr. Willard said in view of Mr. Cahalan’s memo, he did have a chance to discuss with Jack and 

Priscilla today the possibility of a Manager’s written report in addition to the verbal reports made at 

Council.  He envisions that if there was a written report of significant things, that would work.   



General Business & Developer Meeting    

August 19, 2015 
 

Page 4 of 5 

 

Mrs. deLeon said when did she say micromanaging?  She asked for specific incidents to be relayed 

to Council.  Mr. Willard said he associated the word micromanaging with day-to-day activities as 

opposed to higher level activities.     

 

Mr. Maxfield said there’s many things that staff and the departments deal with in between meetings 

and he agrees there are some communication lapses, there’s always room for improvement.  He 

doesn’t see that department heads attendance at meetings will solve those issues. Better 

communication from department heads to Council could solve some problems.  He agrees there 

could be better communication.  Mrs. deLeon said she agrees, we don’t need to have the staff here 

but better communication of informing us of what’s going on.  She thinks the ball was dropped.   

 

Mr. Maxfield said when we had major floods and power outages; he would have liked to know a 

lot more because we were out talking to residents.  Mr. Horiszny said a lot of the township alerts 

will let the residents and Council know.  Mr. Maxfield said notification from Public Works about 

what they are working on is a good idea.  Mrs. deLeon said this is a good discussion and we need 

better communication.  She asked Attorney Treadwell if she is violating any law asking for 

information on Township issues as a Council member and if she needs approval to do so?  Attorney 

Treadwell said no, he can’t think of any law.  Mrs. deLeon said then she doesn’t need anybody’s 

permission to ask for information.  If the staff is overwhelmed, she’s sorry, but as long as she’s 

elected or not elected, she’s going to keep asking her questions without Mr. Horiszny’s opinion.     

 

Mr. Maxfield said maybe we should to come up with some ideas on how to have better 

communication.   Mrs. deLeon said we should look into this.   

 

V. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS ITEMS 

 A. APPROVAL OF AUGUST 5, 2015 COUNCIL MINUTES 

Mr. Horiszny said the August 5, 2015 minutes are ready for Council approval.  He had a couple of 

corrections. 

MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved for approval of the August 5, 2015 Council minutes, with corrections. 

SECOND BY: Mr. Willard 

ROLL CALL: 3-1 (Mrs. deLeon – No; Mr. Kern – Absent) 

   

 B. APPROVAL OF JULY 2015 FINANCIAL REPORTS 

Mr. Horiszny said the July 2015 financial reports are ready for Council approval.   

MOTION BY: Mr. Horiszny moved for approval of the July 2015 financial reports 

SECOND BY: Mr. Maxfield 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Mr. Kern – Absent) 

 

VI. PUBLIC COMMENT/CITIZEN NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
 Mr. Gordon Gress asked about the stormwater project on Black River Road.  Mr. Cahalan said they 

are still working on the engineering plan and Council appropriated the funding in the budget.   
 

VII. COUNCIL & STAFF REPORTS  

A. TOWNSHIP MANAGER 

 He said Community Day is this Saturday from 10 a.m. to 5 p.m.   

B.     COUNCIL 

Mr. Maxfield 
 He said there is a Watershed conference at Lehigh University on October 13

th
.  He would 

like this put on the website.   

 He said the improvements for the library were put out to bid and the bid has been awarded 

and the low bidder was $60,000.00 less than what was budgeted.   

Mrs. deLeon  
 She attended the DiMaio’s ribbon cutting for their 30

th
 anniversary. 



General Business & Developer Meeting    

August 19, 2015 
 

Page 5 of 5 

 She asked if the landfill expansion information was put on the website?  Attorney 

Treadwell said we were going to put on the most recent maps.   

 She asked if Ron talked to the LSA about the FERC letter for the Bethlehem watershed 

property?  Mr. Horiszny said he was trying to find out first if it had been resolved.   

 Mrs. deLeon said the Landfill Committee has not heard anything back on the air studies.   

Mr. Maxfield asked if we can ask DEP what’s going on.  Mr. Cahalan said the last 

communication was from DEP Secretary Quigley who said they were working on it.   

 She said the SVP meeting is on Thursday, September 10
th
. 

 She said she’d like to know where we are in the process regarding the Applebutter Road 

rezoning or the western expansion of the landfill?  Attorney Treadwell said back at the 

beginning of the process, he had handed out and discussed at Planning & Council meetings 

the procedures that are in place for the adoption of a zoning ordinance amendment.  He’s 

going to say it was back in 2012 when it was first sent to the P/C and the last public 

hearing we had was probably October 2013.  Since the close of that hearing, we haven’t 

had it advertised to vote on the amendment.  The MPC creates a timeline for the separation 

between the close of a public hearing and the adoption of a zoning ordinance and that is 90 

days.  It does not create a time line for the close of a public hearing and the adoption of a 

zoning ordinance amendment which is what this is.  He would say given that almost two 

years has passed since we closed the hearing, he thinks if Council were to consider that 

type of amendment in that area again, his advice would be that we would have to start the 

process over again.  He would not be comfortable taking a vote on that given the amount of 

time that has passed since the close of the public hearing.  Mrs. deLeon asked if the 

proposed rezoning is over then?  Attorney Treadwell said unless a future Council brings it 

up again.  Mr. Maxfield asked why we don’t treat amendments the same way we treat 

ordinances?  Attorney Treadwell said he thinks the MPC differentiates because what it 

talks about when it adopts a zoning ordinance is the entire book.  An amendment to the 

zoning ordinance is a change to a map or a change to a definition.   

Mr. Kern – Absent 

Mr. Willard – No report 

Mr. Horiszny 
 He said the LSA is checking on the status of the letter written in support of the City of 

Bethlehem.     

 He said the fix he tried on the fence at the Lutz-Franklin Schoolhouse didn’t work, so he is 

still working on it.   

 Mrs. deLeon said we need an update on the Act 537 LSA sewer plan. 

D. SOLICITOR – No report 

E. PLANNER – Absent 

F. ENGINEER – No report 
 

VIII. ADJOURNMENT 

MOTION BY: Mrs. deLeon moved for adjournment.  The time was 8:28 pm. 

SECOND BY:  Mr. Maxfield 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Mr. Kern – Absent) 

 

Submitted by: 

 

 

________________________________    __________________________________ 

Jack Cahalan       Ron Horiszny     

Township Manager      Council President 


